
 

Licensing Sub-Committee agenda 

Date: Thursday 10 June 2021 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Via Video Conference 

Membership: To be confirmed 

 

Webcasting notice 

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's 
website. At the start of the meeting the chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is 
being filmed. 

You should be aware that the council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act. 
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the council’s 
published policy. 

Therefore by entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should ask the 
committee clerk, who will advise where to sit. 

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the monitoring officer at 
monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 

Agenda Item 
 

Time Page No 

1 Introductory remarks by the Chairman   
    
2 Apologies for absence   
    
3 Declarations of interest   
 To receive any disclosure of disclosable pecuniary interests 

by Members relating to any items on the agenda. If any 
Member is uncertain as to whether an interest should be 
disclosed, he or she is asked if possible to contact the 

  

mailto:monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk


District Solicitor prior to the meeting.  
 
Members are reminded that if they are declaring an 
interest, they should state the nature of that interest 
whether or not they are required to withdraw from the 
meeting. 
 

4 Hearing Procedure Rules  3 - 10 
 To note the hearing procedure rules and virtual licensing 

sub-committee procedural rules.  
 

  

5 The Legends Festival, The Henley Showground, Marlow 
Lane, Henley-on-Thames, Buckinghamshire, RG9 3AP 

 11 - 72 

 To consider an application under s.17 of the Licensing Act 
2003 for a new premises licence in respect of The Legends 
Festival, The Henley Showground, Marlow Lane, Henley-
on-Thames, Buckinghamshire, RG9 3AP (application and 
report attached). 
 

  

 
If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of 
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support 
in place. 

For further information please contact: Liz Hornby on 01494 421261, email: 
democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk   

mailto:democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk


Licensing and Regulatory Sub-Committee Virtual Procedural Rules 

Introduction  

The Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government 

made Regulations (The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 

(Flexibility of Local Authority Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) 

Regulations 2020) to ensure local authorities can conduct business during the current public 

health emergency and this legislation was passed on 4 April 2020. The Regulations will apply 

to local authority meetings (full council, executive, joint committee, committee or sub-

committee) held before 7 May 2021 from 4 April 2020. Councils can make standing orders in 

respect of virtual meetings, and will not be constrained by any existing restrictions. The 

Licensing Act 2003 and the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearing) Regulations 2005 provide flexibility 

to Licensing Authorities in determining their own hearing procedures. 

Before the Hearing  

Access to Information  

The Council can hold and alter the frequency and occurrence of meetings without 

requirement for further notice. 

The new 2020 Regulations make provision for local authority members and officers, and the 

public, to have access to documents without attending council buildings and it will be  

sufficient for local authorities to publish the documents on their website. This includes 

notices, agendas, reports, background papers and minutes. The Proper Officer will give the 

requisite notice to the public of the time of the meeting, and the agenda, together with details 

of how to join the meeting which will be available on the website. 

The obligation under the old Regulations (Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 

(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 ) to supply copies of such 

documents in response to requests made by members of the public and on behalf of 

newspapers is disapplied.   

The requirement in England for 5 clear days' notice to be given of principal council meetings, 

including annual meetings, still applies however notice can now be given on the council's 

website. However, it should be noted that Licensing is not subject to this but is bound by the 

Licensing Act 2003 and there may be occasional times when these requirements cannot be 

met. 

Time and Place of Meetings 

Meetings can be held remotely, including by (but not limited to) telephone conferencing, 

video conferencing, live webcast, and live interactive streaming even if particular members 

of the public cannot access them. This Council will use Microsoft Teams to hold virtual 

meetings and will invite external participants to virtual meetings, if any, via email or 

telephone. Virtual meetings will be webcast where the Hearing is held in public via a link 

published on the meeting webpage. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/392/made


The Constitution states that when reasonably practical, a sub-committee meeting should be 
held at the Council facility which is closest to the premises or issue that is the subject of the 
meeting. However, this requirement cannot be met during this current period. 

During the Hearing  

It is a requirement for such hearings that: 

a) proper notice is given, with all papers served timeously on the authority and published 

online; 

b) the actual parties to the hearing are able to participate; 

c) any member of the public can see or hear, albeit not participate in, the hearing. 

Although held in a virtual format, Hearings dealing with new licences or variations to existing 

licences will follow the standard procedure. Panel Members may ask questions of any party 

at any time. Questions are usually taken after each person has spoken. It is helpful to 

undertake a document check at the start of the Hearing. 

In terms of issues that may arise during the Hearing the following rules apply:- 

Quorum for Meetings 

The rules for quorum will still apply. This is 3 Councillors for a licensing or regulatory sub-

committee. It is also considered good practice to have a reserve member, in case of interests. 

The constitution states that if a quorum is not present within 10 minutes of the scheduled 

start of the meeting or such longer time as allowed by the Chairman, the business of the 

meeting will be adjourned.  The Chairman may allow for flexibility around the start time of 

the meeting where there are any technical issues. 

In the event of any apparent failure of the technology the Chairman should immediately 

determine if the meeting is still quorate. The Chairman could adjourn for 10-15 minutes to 

allow the connection to be re-established. If an individual remote participation fails the 

Chairman may call a short adjournment. As the hearing must have 3 members present, the 

meeting will be reliant on the lost connection being re-established to ensure all members are 

present for the entire discussion in order to hear all of the facts and vote on the matter.  

Only 3 members are permitted on Licensing and Regulatory Sub-Committees (LSC) for each 
Hearing (as per Section 9 of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Constitution Terms of Reference 
for the LSC). The reserve member is present in case an interest arises at the beginning of the 
Hearing or one of the 3 members identified as being on the LSC fails to attend the virtual 
meeting. It is only those 3 members who have been identified as being on the LSC for that 
Hearing who can ask questions of the other parties. A reserve member would not be able to 
participate if the technology fails for one of the members present as whilst they would be 
listening they will not have taken an active role nor been included in the process/asked to see 
if they have any questions etc. 
 
Attendance at meetings and webcasting 

Page 4



A roll call or introductions will be made at the start of the meeting to record those present. 

There is no requirement for councillors to sign their names on the attendance sheets when 

attending a virtual meeting.  The Democratic Services Officer will maintain a list of attendance 

throughout the meeting.  

To be classified as a ‘member in attendance’ and attend a meeting remotely, the following 

conditions must be satisfied;  

a) councillors must be able to hear and (where practicable) see and be heard and (where 
practicable) be seen by other councillors in attendance at the meeting. This full 
requirement also extends to members of the public attending to exercise a right to speak 
at the meeting. 

 
b) All other members of the public must as a minimum be able to hear (but if practicable be 

seen as well). 

In practice this means that if councillors and speaking members of the public can be heard 

and hear each other and other members of the public not speaking can hear, this would fulfil 

the requirements of holding a virtual meeting.   

Members of the press and public may only be excluded from a meeting in accordance with 

the Access to Information Rules.  

The Regulations state that meetings being open to the public include access by remote means. 

Such access includes (but is not limited to) video conferencing, live webcast, and live 

interactive streaming and where a meeting is accessible to the public through such remote 

means the meeting is open to the public whether or not members of the public are able to 

attend the meeting in person. For clarity, a meeting recorded and then posted online after 

the event would not satisfy this requirement.  

In the event that the live webcast fails and cannot be resumed the meeting will be opened 

and adjourned to allow for it to take place at a hearing (the date and time of which will be 

fixed prior to the matter being adjourned). 

The people on the Teams call who are present throughout the meeting are the Members of 

the Sub-Committee, ,  any officer supporting the meeting and those who have submitted valid 

representations, applicant and/or legal representative .  The public gallery, where Members 

can sit and observe the meeting alongside members of the public, is the webcast version. It is 

important to keep numbers in the meeting (except for those allowed to be present as 

Members) to a minimum to enable the proper flow of the virtual meeting. 

Conflicts of interest 

Councillors should consider if they have an interest, and, if required, seek advice from the 

Monitoring Officer, or their deputy, before the meeting starts. If a Councillor appointed to a 

licensing hearing considers that their interest is prejudicial they should notify Democratic 

Services as soon as possible so that an alternative councillor can be appointed to the licensing 

hearing. Where a councillor has an interest they must declare their interest and the nature of 

Page 5



it at the start of the meeting. If the interest is ‘personal’ having declared a personal interest 

the councillor may continue to speak and vote on the item of business concerned. If the 

councillor has a prejudicial interest they will not be able to take part in the discussion or 

decision and must leave the meeting. A reserve councillor, if available, will then be called 

upon to serve on the hearing in their absence.   

Minutes of meetings  

The Minutes of meetings will be published on the website if the meeting is held in public.  

Questions  

Questions will be asked in the normal way as set out in the Constitution.  

Order of business (as normal) 

1. The Chairman will open the Hearing and start the introductions of the Sub-Committee and 
Officers and ask each party to introduce themselves. The Chairman will confirm that if a 
party is not present their representations/application will have been read and will be 
considered in reaching the decision.  

 
2. The Chairman will address any interest arising under the Code of Conduct.  

 
3. The Chairman will consider any submitted requests from a party for permission for another 

person to appear at the virtual Hearing. If necessary, the sub-committee will retire to 
deliberate before making a decision. 

 
4. The Chairman will confirm that the Hearing will take the form of a virtual round the table 

discussion led by the Sub-Committee in accordance with this procedure. If all parties 
present confirm that they have seen and understand the procedure to be followed at the 
virtual Hearing and agree they are ready to proceed then the Hearing shall commence as 
set out from para 9 below.  

 
5. The Chairman will remind everyone that the purpose of the virtual Hearing should be 

borne in mind at all times i.e.  
 

- to enable those with a right to appear at the virtual meeting to advance their point of 
view and concerns and to test the case of their opponents and  

- to assist the Sub-Committee to gather evidence and understand the relevant issues. 
 
6. The Chairman will confirm what advance papers have been received and that these have 

been read and therefore there is no need to repeat these matters. 
 
7. The Chairman will make clear that parties should only address the Sub-Committee in 

relation to matters previously raised/submitted. Late evidence to be submitted at the 
Hearing will only be considered by the Licensing Sub-Committee with the consent of all 
parties present. 

 

Page 6



8. The Chairman will then outline the procedure to be followed by reading out the order of 
oral presentations unless all parties present have confirmed that they have seen and 
understood the procedure and are ready to proceed with the virtual Hearing.  

            
9. The Chairman will ask the Applicants whether they wish to make any amendments to their 

application with a view to addressing issues raised by the representations.  
 
10. A) Order of oral presentations for an application:- 
 

a. The Licensing Officer will present their report outlining the details of the 
application/notice and representations received. 

b. Any party may question the Licensing Officer. 
c. The Members may question the Licensing Officer. 
d. The Responsible Authorities will present their case and call their witnesses (in the case 

of a review hearing, the responsible authority bringing the review will present their 
case and call their witness(s  

e. Any other party may question the Responsible Authorities. 
f. The Members may question the Responsible Authorities. 
g. Each Interested Party will present their case in turn and call their witnesses.  
h. Any other party may question the Interested Party.  
i. The Members may question the Interested Parties. 
j. The Applicanticence Holder will present their case and call their witnesses.  
k. The other parties may question the Applicant/Licence Holder. 
l. The Licensing Officer may question the Applicant/Licence Holder. 
m. The Members may question the Applicant/Licence Holder. 

 
 
B) Order of oral presentation for a review 
 
Add in  
 
Once they have made their representations under the requirements of the constitution they 
will need to switch off their microphone and not participate any further in the meeting unless 
they are asking any questions or wish to sum up. No speaking is timed. 
 
11. Before moving onto the next party, the Chairman will check there are no further points 

the current party wishes to make or any further questions that need to be put to that 
party. 

 
12. . There may be a discussion at the hearing, on a without prejudice basis, where each party 

will be asked to address/give their views on any proposed conditions and suggest any 
other appropriate conditions to assist the Sub-Committee. If possible an agreed schedule 
of conditions will result. It will remain however for the Sub-Committee to determine any 
final conditions that will apply should the application be successful 

13. Each party will be invited to make closing submission as set out in paragraph 10.  
 
 

Page 7



14. The Chairman will then close the Hearing and the Sub-Committee will meet virtually 
together with the Committee Clerk and the Sub-Committee Legal Advisor for the matter 
to be determined.  

 
15. The Sub-Committee will come to a decision which will be sent to the Applicant and all 

other parties’ who submitted relevant representations within the time limits set out in 
Regulations together with details of the right of appeal. 

 
When can the Chairman be interrupted? 

There are circumstances allowed for in the Constitution where the Chairman can be 

interrupted such as:- 

 Technology is not working effectively  

 Officer needs to provide advice 

 Point of order or personal explanation  

or any other area where the Constitution or Chairman allows. 

Disturbance during proceedings  

The Constitution states that if anyone interrupts proceedings the Chairman will warn the 

person concerned and if they continue to interrupt the Chairman will order their removal 

from the virtual meeting room. There may be circumstances where the person needs to be 

removed immediately, for example if they are being inappropriate, and the Chairman can do 

this by muting their microphone. If there is a general disturbance making orderly business 

impossible, the Chairman may adjourn the meeting for as long as they consider necessary. 

Adjournments 

People will remain on the call with mics muted and cameras off until the meeting starts again. 

The Chairman may also want to consider having a comfort (screen) break for longer meetings. 

If there is a problem with the technology the Chairman should pause  the meeting until that 

issue has been resolved. However, this does not stop a meeting going ahead because a person 

does not have access to the required technology in the first place. If technology fails for a 

wholly remote meeting, and the meeting is no longer open to the public, any decisions made 

could be challenged as unlawful which renders the whole meeting incapable of proceeding 

and therefore the Chairman should adjourn until the remote meeting can be restored within 

a reasonable period, or at a time and date fixed by the Chairman . Any interested party eligible 

to speak who attends to exercise their right to speak and is unable to do so renders only their 

item incapable of proceeding unless they are happy to submit their comments through a 

written representation. 

The Council will try and achieve the best possible outcome.  

Deliberations and Exclusion of the Press and the Public   

Under Regulation 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 the licensing 

authority may exclude the public from all or part of the hearing where it considers that the 

Page 8



public interest in doing so outweighs the public interest in the Hearing or part of that Hearing 

taking place in public. In addition there may be information in the agenda pack pertaining to 

the hearing be exempt from publication or discussion in public under Schedule 12A of The 

Local Government Act 1972 as amended. In these circumstances the public will be excluded 

from part or the whole of the Hearing as appropriate. 

At the conclusion of the Hearing, the Sub-Committee together with the Democratic Services 

Officer and Legal Advisor, will remain in a private virtual meeting in order to deliberate on the 

decision. Interested parties will then be notified of the outcome of the hearing in writing after 

the meeting in accordance with required timescales. 

Each Member in remote attendance must ensure and verbally declare that there are no other 

persons present who are not entitled to be (either hearing or seeing) consideration of such 

items, and/or recording the proceedings. 

The Sub-Committee may depart from this procedure (as varied/amended from time to time 

based on changes to law and practice) if it considers it necessary and/or equitable to do so. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Buckinghamshire Council                Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Date:  
10 June 2021, 10:00 hours 

 
Agenda Item No: 5 

 
 

SUBJECT: APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE at:  

The Henley Showground, Marlow Lane, Henley-on-Thames,RG9 3AP 

REPORT OF: 
Application under section 17, Licensing Act 2003 

Responsible 

Officer 
Brian Whittall – Licensing Officer                                                            

Report Author 
Brian Whittall – Licensing Officer                                                            

Ward/s 

Affected 
Chiltern Villages 

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 

To provide Members with information enabling the determination of an application for a new 
Premises Licence, in respect of which relevant representations have been received.  
 
The Application has been submitted by Starlight Concerts Live (Entertainment), Starlight 
Concerts, Kemp House, 152 - 160 City Road, Islington, London, EC1V 2NX in respect of The 
Legends Festival, The Henley Showground, Marlow Lane, Henley-on-Thames, Buckinghamshire, 
RG9 3AP (“the premises”). 

 
2. Background  
 

2.1 The Henley Showground comprises of approximately 60 acres of pasture on the banks of 
the river Thames near Henley and is owned by the Caulden Faw Estate. 

 
The proposed premises licence in intended to be used for tribute acts performing on an 
outdoor stage over a 2-day event on the 7 and 8 August 2021. 
 
A location plan showing the premises location is attached to this report marked Appendix 
1. 

 
3. The Application 

  
3.1 This application is for a new Premises Licence for up to 9,999 persons to commence with 

immediate effect upon the decision to grant by this licensing authority. A copy of the 
application, including a premises plan is attached to this report marked Appendix 2.  

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

 

3.2 The licensable activities sought are as follows: 
 

Proposed activity  Proposed hours  
 

Supply of alcohol 
(On the premises only) 
 
 
Exhibition of Films (Outdoor) 
 
 
 
Provision of Live Music 
(Outdoor) 
 
 
Playing of Recorded Music 
(Outdoor) 
 
 
Performance of Dance (Outdoor) 
 

Friday   16:00 – 23:00  
Saturday  12:00 – 23:00 
Sunday  12:00 – 23:00 

Friday   16:00 – 23:00  
Saturday  12:00 – 23:00 
Sunday  12:00 – 23:00 

Friday   16:00 – 23:00  
Saturday  12:00 – 23:00 
Sunday  12:00 – 23:00 

Friday   16:00 – 23:00  
Saturday  12:00 – 23:00 
Sunday  12:00 – 23:00 

Friday   16:00 – 23:00  
Saturday  12:00 – 23:00 
Sunday  12:00 – 23:00 

Hours premises are open to the 
public  
 
 
 

Friday   15:00 – 23:59  
Saturday  11:00 – 23:59 
Sunday  11:00 – 23:59 

 
4. Relevant Representations 
 

4.1 Responsible Authorities:  
 

4.1.1 The Chief Officer of Police: Response received - no objection, Appendix 3. 

4.1.2 The Licensing Authority: No objection  

4.1.3 The Fire and Rescue Authority: Response received – no objection  

4.1.4 The Local Planning Authority (Head of Sustainable Development): No response 
received - no comment 

4.1.5 The Local Environmental Health Authority (Head of Environmental Health): 
Response received - No objection, Appendix 4. 

4.1.6 Weights and Measures Authority (Trading Standards Officer): No response 
received - no comment 

4.1.7 The Safeguarding and Child Protection Unit: No response received - no comment 

4.1.8 The Primary Care Trust: No response received - no comment 

4.1.9   No responses were received from any other Responsible Authority. 

Page 12



 

 

 
4.2 Any other persons: Four (4) objections were received during the 28 day consultation 

process a copy of which are attached marked Appendix 5. 
 

4.3 No letters of support were received. 
 

5. Licensing Officer’s Observations: 
 

5.1 The Relevant Representations received raise the follows issues: 
 

 The prevention of public nuisance 
 
Representations mention concerns regarding noise pollution occurring on the 
premises. 
 
Residents living nearby have expressed concerns that their right to enjoy the peaceful 
possession of their property is undermined, and that a statutory nuisance may occur as 
a result of the granting of the application. 

 
5.2 Mediation 

The applicant has engaged in mediation with interested parties following the conclusion 
of the consultation period via The Licensing Unit. Additional conditions were offered, 
which was sent to all parties, Appendix 6. 
 
This mediation did not result in any representation being withdrawn. Responses to the 
applicant’s communications are attached marked, Appendix 7. 

 
5.4 In addition to the Mandatory Conditions, the Licensing Sub-Committee should consider 

those conditions offered in the operating schedule and decide whether they are 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and address any valid 
representations made by Interested Parties.   

 
6. Policy Considerations  
 

6.1 Regard must be had to the Council’s adopted Statement of Licensing Policy (last published 
December 2018) when determining this application.   

 
In relation to the prevention of public nuisance the Policy states (p.10) 

3.16 The Council wishes to protect the amenity of residents and businesses in the immediate area 
surrounding the licensed premises.  Applications should demonstrate that public nuisance 
will not increase as a result of the application being granted. 

 
3.17 The Authority will particularly take into account the following: 

 The measures proposed to prevent noise and vibration escaping from the premises. 
Such measures may include installation of sound insulation and sound limitation 
devices; 

Page 13



 

 

 Measures proposed to prevent public nuisance from use of outside areas, including 
smoking areas and outdoor events; 

 The measures proposed to prevent disturbance by customers arriving at or leaving the 
premises, in particular after 11pm, for example appropriate signage at exits and in car 
parks, parking provision, the provision of door supervisors, use of “quiet last half hour” 
at dance venues and provision and availability of safe transport home; 

 The measures proposed to prevent light pollution from external lighting, including 
security lighting; 

 The measures proposed for refuse storage or disposal and management of any 
additional litter; 

 Representations by Control of Pollution, Thames Valley Police and Environmental 
Health; 

 Representations by local residents in the vicinity of the premises; 
 

6.2 Regard must also be had to the national Guidance issued by the Home Office under Section 
182 of the Licensing Act 2003, as amended. 
  

In relation to prevention of public nuisance the guidance states (p.13) 

2.15  The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through 
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to 
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club premises 
certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this licensing 
objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect of the 
licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working (including those 
carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be disproportionate and 
unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells 
and litter.  

2.16  Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however not 
narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may include 
in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and 
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. Public 
nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and 
insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.  

2.17  Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control the 
levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple measure such 
as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular time, or persons are 
not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time. More sophisticated 
measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker mounts to mitigate 
sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However, conditions in relation to live 
or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances where the entertainment 
activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions appropriate to promote the 
prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of 
the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing authorities should avoid 
inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable to the 
community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to purchase and 
install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues.  

Page 14



 

 

2.18  As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain 
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the 
area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing 
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their powers 
are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other legislation may not 
adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and additional conditions may 
be appropriate.  

  
2.19  Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions should 

normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive period for 
people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the early morning 
when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. This 
is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music between 11 pm and 8 
am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise emanating from the premises may 
also be appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave. 

 
2.21  Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the personal 

responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-social 
behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly reasonable for a 
licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant representations, that requires 
the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from the building encouraging patrons 
to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they wish to smoke, to do so at designated 
places on the premises instead of outside, and to respect the rights of people living nearby 
to a peaceful night.  

7. Links to Council Policy Objectives 
 

7.1 The Authority regards existing and future environmental qualities and character of the 
District to be important when consideration is given to granting licences for any purpose.  
When considering licensing applications where relevant representations have been made 
the Authority will consider its effect on the licensing objectives and in particular the effect 
the licence will have on the public nuisance objective.  

 
8. Resources, Risk and Other Implications 

 
8.1 Resource: The only resource implications to date has been officer time. If the applicant 

or persons making relevant representations appeals against the decision of the Licensing 
Sub – Committee, however, this would result in legal fees to defend the appeal and 
further costs.  In the event of a successful appeal the Council may also have to pay the 
applicant/other party’s costs. 

 
8.2 Human Rights  
 

The Panel should consider its responsibilities under the Human Rights Act when 
considering the fair balance between the interests of the applicant and the rights of local 
residents.   

 
Any decision taken must be appropriate and proportionate to the objective being 
pursued. In particular the following should be taken onto consideration: 

Page 15



 

 

Article 6 - the right to a fair hearing 
Article 8 - respect for private and family life 
Article 1, First Protocol - peaceful enjoyment of possessions (which can include the 
possession of a licence) 

 
8.3 Interference with these rights is acceptable within the terms of the Human Rights Act 

1998 if it safeguards the rights of others, is legitimate, proportionate and balanced in that 
there is a need to find a fair balance between the protection of individual rights and the 
interests of the community at large – other than rights under Article 6 and 14 which are 
absolute rights and can not be interfered with.  

 
8.4 Therefore if Members refuse to grant the application for a new Premises Licence in whole 

or part or grant it subject to conditions, this will be a breach of the rights of the Applicant 
unless such refusal (in full or part) is, and/or the conditions imposed are, appropriate, 
proportionate and can be justified, on balance, by being outweighed by the rights of the 
community at large to peaceful enjoyment of their property/possessions. Any restriction 
placed upon the Premises Licence must not go beyond what is strictly necessary to 
achieve its legitimate purpose in order to mitigate the interference with the community 
at large’s enjoyment of their property/possessions.  

 
8.5 By taking into consideration all the material considerations relating to this application and 

balancing the interests/rights of all parties involved it is considered that the Licensing Sub-
Committee’s decision will be both proportionate and justified having had regard to the 
Human Rights Act 1998. 

 
8.6 The Equality Act 2010, including the Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty, must be taken 

into account when making decisions in relation to licensing applications.  
 

9.  Determination by the Licensing Sub-Committee  
 

9.1 The Sub Committee is obliged to determine applications in the light of the above and any 
other material considerations with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives.  
Which are: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 
 Public safety 
 Prevention of public nuisance 
 Protection of children from harm 

 
Regard must also be had to the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, Home Office 
Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, relevant 
representations received and the evidence presented at the Hearing.  

 
9.2 Each application must be considered on its own merits and any conditions attached to 

premises licences must be tailored to the individual style and characteristics of the 
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of 
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises. Standardised 
conditions should be avoided and indeed may be unlawful where they cannot be shown 
to promote the licensing objectives in any individual case. 

Page 16



 

 

 
9.3 The Sub-Committee must avoid duplication of other legal requirements and should only 

impose conditions on a premises licence which are appropriate and proportionate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives and where additional and/or supplementary 
measures are required in order to promote the licensing objectives. 

 
9.4 The following options are available to the Licensing Sub Committee: 

 
9.4.1 Grant the Premises Licence - subject to any conditions which are consistent with 

the Operating Schedule and which are considered appropriate and proportionate 
for the promotion of the four licensing objectives in response to relevant 
representations received - and any relevant mandatory conditions.  

 
9.4.2 Exclude from the scope of the Premises Licence granted under Para 9.4.1 above 

any of the licensable activities to which the application relates. 
 
9.4.3 Refuse to specify a person in the Premises Licence granted under Para 9.4.1 as the 

premises supervisor. 
 
9.4.4 Reject the whole of the Application. 
  
9.4.5 Grant the Premises Licence subject to different conditions for different parts of 

the premises or the different /reduced licensable activities if this is considered 
appropriate and proportionate to promote the four licensing objectives and in 
response to the representations received). 

 
9.5  The Sub-Committee is asked to note that it may not reject the whole or part of the 

application or attach conditions - merely because it considers it desirable to do so. It must 
actually be appropriate and proportionate in order to promote the 4 licensing objectives 
and be in response to the representations received and full reasons must be given for the 
Sub-Committees decision. 

 

Page 17



 

 

THE SCHEDULE 
 
The Mandatory Conditions 
           
For the purposes of this schedule; 

"the Act" means the Licensing Act 2003;  

"Anti-Social Behaviour" has the meaning given in section 36 of the Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003; 
"Disability" has the meaning given in section 1 of the Disability Discrimination Act 1995;  

"Relevant Premises" has the meaning given in paragraphs (a) and (b) of the definition in section 159 
of the Act; 

"Responsible Person" has the meaning given in paragraphs (a) and (b) of the definition in section 
153(4) of the Act (the relevant parts of which are attached to this licence)  
 
Mandatory Condition – s19 of the Licensing Act 2003 

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence: 
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or 
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his 
personal licence is suspended. 

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made authorised by a person who holds 
a personal licence 

MANDATORY CONDITIONS SPECIFIED BY THE LICENSING ACT 2003 (MANDATORY LICENSING 
CONDITIONS) ORDER 2010 AS AMENDED BY THE LICENSING ACT 2003 (MANDATORY LICENSING 
CONDITIONS)(AMENDMENT) ORDER 2014: 

Mandatory Condition 1 

1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the 
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 

encourage, individuals to— 

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the 
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in 
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, 

Page 18



 

 

encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness 
in any favourable manner; 

(e)  dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 
where  that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability) 

 
Mandatory Condition 2 

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers 
where it is reasonably available. 
 
Mandatory Condition 3 

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol 

(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the 
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy 

(3)  The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years 
of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being 
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a) a holographic mark, or 
 (b) an ultraviolet feature 

Mandatory Condition 4 

The responsible person must ensure that—  

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises 
(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or 
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures—  

 (i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 
 (ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 
 (iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available 
to customers on the premises; and 

(c)  where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be 
sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.”  

 
MANDATORY CONDITIONS SPECIFIED BY THE LICENSING ACT 2013 (MANDATORY CONDITIONS) 
ORDER 2014: 

Mandatory Condition 5 

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price  

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—  

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;  

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula—  
    P = D + (D×V)  
where—  

(i) P is the permitted price,  

Page 19



 

 

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged 
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and  

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value 
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;  

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
premises licence—  

 (i) the holder of the premises licence,  

 (ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or  

 (iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a  supply of alcohol under 
such a licence; 

(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and  

(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added 
Tax Act 1994  

3.  Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this 
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be 
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny  

4.—(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of 
paragraph 2 on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next 
day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax  

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second 
day. 

Mandatory Condition - s21 of the Licensing Act 2003 - Door Supervision 

Where a condition of this licence requires one or more individuals to be present to carry out 
a security activity (as defined by the Private Security Industry Act 2001 as amended from time 
to time) must be licensed with the Security Industry Authority. 

 
Proposed conditions 
 
The prevention of crime and disorder 

 SIA Licensed Staff and Event Marshals shall control and monitor all areas of the site.  This includes 
providing security, monitoring access and exits points, removing individuals who pose a risk to 
the public and any reasonable matters to promote the licensing objectives. 

 Event staff shall remain on site overnight to maintain site security and safety.  

 SIA security staff shall operate bag search procedures adopted to identify and confiscate drugs, 
weapons and any prohibited items.  There shall be a zero tolerance policy in relation to drugs at 
the site. Drugs seized shall be stored securely and handed to the Police. 

 Behaviour on site shall be monitored. Any person behaving inappropriately shall be spoken to 
and warned about their behaviour.  If attendees persistently behave inappropriately, they shall 
be ejected from the site. A list of evicted people shall be maintained and provided on request to 
the Police. 

Page 20



 

 

 There will be no use of glass drinking vessels at the event with alcoholic drinks served in non-
glass/safety/polycarbonate vessels.  Glass containers shall not be permitted to be bought onto 
site by event attendees. Drug amnesty bins shall be provided at the entrance points with any 
deposited substances securely kept and provided as soon as practicable to the Police. 

 Staff to be trained to report any suspicious or criminal activities to security team who shall, where 
justified, report matters to the Police.  Any person deemed unfit due to drink or drugs at the 
event shall be asked to leave the event after organisers have considered it safe for them to leave 
the site.  

 No dogs on site except for guide, assistance dogs and passive search dog teams. 

 DPS to remain on site throughout operation of event.   

Public safety 

 Secure fencing shall be erected around the site perimeter to restrict access and create a safe 
event area.   

 Internal and external lighting shall illuminate the concert field during fading and dark light times. 
All powered or electrical apparatus, sanitary units and other installations shall be regularly 
inspected to ensure it is maintained in good order at all times.  

 Sufficient number of onsite toilets and facilities shall be provided to accommodate attendee 
numbers.  

 A clear method of communication between all key personnel shall be operated on site in the 
event of minor and major incidents. 

 A free provision of drinking water will be available from the bar, provided on request, in 
disposable small cups. 

 Numbers of SIA staff at entry and exit points shall be based on risk assessment. 

 We have developed a full site evacuation procedure.  

- Well trained and expert staff to adhere to environmental health requirements 

- Training and implementation of underage ID checks.  

- A log book or recording system shall be kept upon the premises in which shall be entered 
particulars of inspections made of all areas of the operation including backstage.  

- The log book shall be kept available for inspection when required by persons authorised by 
the Licensing Act 2003 or associated legislation.  

- All powered or electrical apparatus, sanitary units and other installations, will be maintained 
in good order at all times and regularly inspected.  

- The provision of a sufficient number of onsite toilets and facilities to accommodate the 
number of attendees.  

- The Licence Holder will ensure that there is a detailed, fit for purpose written Contingency 
Plan in place for each event that has been agreed by the Emergency Services and the safety 

Page 21



 

 

Advisory Group  

- A list of restricted items is emailed to customers prior to the event.  

The prevention of public nuisance 

 There shall be a named person appointed to monitor and co-ordinate noise issues to the approval 
of the Environmental Protection Service.  The noise co-ordinator shall liaise with the EHO and 
relevant event staff regarding sound systems relating to noise control prior to and during the 
event. 

 The sound system shall be configured and operated in a similar manner as intended for the event. 
The sound source used for the test shall be similar in character to the music most likely to be 
produced during the event. 

 The noise co-ordinator shall ensure that prior to the event during any testing of equipment, 
minimum noise levels are emitted from the sound equipment, to reduce to its lowest level any 
noise nuisance to local residents. The licensee shall ensure that sound testing is only carried out 
between the hours of 10:00 and 19:00 and is of the shortest duration practicable. 

 Facilities shall be provided on the mixing desk(s), or other appropriate position(s), for an EHO to 
monitor and where necessary secure a reduction in noise level to a reasonable level. 

 Monitoring of sound levels will be undertaken at regular intervals both on site and at agreed 
locations within the community.  Records of noise recordings shall be maintained and provided 
on request to officers from the responsible authorities. Any excessive noise levels identified shall 
be reported to control and reduced accordingly. 

 A contact number will be provided to responsible authorities/communities to provide accessible 
number in the event of needing to be contacted during event. The Premises Licence Holder will 
comply with any reasonable request made by a nominated officer of the Environmental Health 
Team (Noise Officer) to reduce the sound emanating from the amplification system if it is deemed 
a noise nuisance.  

 To ensure that the speakers face away from the major nearby settlements (where possible). To 
adopt a full waste management plan to limit any litter waste around the site. The Premises 
Licence Holder shall ensure that adequate waste receptacles are in place for use by customers at 
the exit(s) to the site.  

 The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that there is no live or recorded music audible at the 
pre-agreed noise monitoring locations after 23.00 on any day.  

The protection of children from harm 

 A Challenge 25 age verification policy shall be in place to prevent sale of alcohol to underage 
people.  This shall detail age verification conditions, ID requirements, staff training and signage 
conditions wording.  

 Nobody under the age of 12 shall be permitted on site unless accompanied by an adult.  This will 
be clearly set out within event marketing material. 

 Security staff with responsibility for the welfare of children shall be satisfactorily DBS checked 

Page 22



 

 

and carefully selected for the role they will be carrying out. 

 No under 18s shall work at the licensed site unless a suitable and sufficient risk assessment has 
been carried out and all control measures effectively implemented. 

 Any persons believed to be drinking under-age shall be intercepted by security personnel and 
alcohol disposed of. 

 Any person under the age of 18 attempting to purchase alcohol, or any adult attempting to 
purchase alcohol for any person under 18 shall be asked to leave the event after event organisers 
have considered that it is safe for them to leave site. The Premises Licence Holder will deliver 
training and implement underage ID checks.  

 The security & medical teams will be trained and at the events to deal with vulnerable children. 

    

Informative/s -        
 

Officer Contact: Brian Whittall (01494 421 346) – email address: 
brian.whittall@buckinghamshire.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers: Application Ref 21/00326/LAPREN 
Licensing Act 2003, as amended 
Licensing Policy – Wycombe Area Published December 2018.  
Home Office Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended.   

 

Page 23

mailto:brian.whittall@buckinghamshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPENDIX 1

P
age 25

A
ppendix 



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

Page 27

Appendix 



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Nicholas Brayne

24/03/2021

9999

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3

Page 51

Appendix 



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4

Page 53

Appendix 



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5

Page 55

Appendix 



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



APPENDIX 6

Page 69

Appendix 



Page 70



APPENDIX 7

Page 71

Appendix 



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Hearing Procedure Rules
	5 The Legends Festival, The Henley Showground, Marlow Lane, Henley-on-Thames, Buckinghamshire, RG9 3AP
	210610 Starlight Concerts - Appx 1
	210610 Starlight Concerts - Appx 2
	210610 Starlight Concerts - Appx 3
	210610 Starlight Concerts - Appx 4
	210610 Starlight Concerts - Appx 5
	210610 Starlight Concerts - Appx 6
	210610 Starlight Concerts - Appx 7




